
Regular Meeting
December 3, 2018

Page 1

1

Pennington Borough Council
Regular Meeting – December 3, 2018

Mayor Persichilli called the Regular Meeting of the Borough Council to order at 7:00PM. Borough Clerk
Betty Sterling called the roll with Council Members Chandler, Griffiths, Lawver Marciante and Mills in
attendance. Council Member Gnatt was absent.

Also present were Borough Administrator Eileen Heinzel, Superintendent of Public Works Rick Smith,
Public Safety Director Bill Meytrott and Borough Attorney Walter Bliss.

Mayor Persichilli announced that notice of this meeting has been given to the Hopewell Valley News,
Trenton Times and was posted on the bulletin board in Borough Hall and on the Borough web-site according
to the regulations of the Open Public Meetings Act.

Mayor Persichilli asked everyone to stand for the Flag Salute.

Open to the Public – Agenda Items Only

Mayor Persichilli read the following statement.

The meeting is now open to the public for comments on items on the agenda for which no public discussion
is provided. In an effort to provide everyone interested an opportunity to address his or her comments to the
Governing Body, a public comment time limit has been instituted for each speaker. Please come forward
and state your name and address for the record. Please limit comments to the Governing Body to a
maximum of 3 minutes.

There were no comments from the public.

PRESENTATIONS

Mayor Persichilli invited Chief Financial Officer, Sandra Webb to come forward to present the Best
Practices Worksheet.

Mrs. Webb stated that the State Department of Community Affairs requires that this worksheet be
completed each year and that a presentation be made to Borough Council. Mrs. Webb stated that this is
the ninth year that we have been doing this inventory. Mrs. Webb stated that this year there was a lot of
ruckus for the New Jersey Municipal Managers and for the Government Finance Officers because the State
changed the list from twenty-five questions to sixty-one questions. Mrs. Webb stated that previously there
were many questions that contained other questions within them and what the State tried to do was split
out multiple questions into separate questions. Mrs. Webb stated that in prior years if you answered No to
any part of the question then you had to answer No to the entire question. Mrs. Webb stated that she
thinks that the State did a pretty good job of cleaning up the multiple questions. Mrs. Webb stated that
Pennington is once again in a good position and we will not be losing any of our last payment for State
Aid. Mrs. Webb stated that we only had one No answer and the question related to whether we have any
electric vehicles. Mrs. Webb stated that this year there were a lot of questions about the budget and
whether the statutory deadlines were met, they inquired about whether elected officials filed financial
disclosures, whether minutes are posted on the website. Mrs. Webb stated that at the end of the day, we
have met all of the requirements and after having this public discussion she feels that we are in pretty good
shape. Mayor Persichilli thanked Mrs. Webb and Mrs. Sterling for their work on this.

Mayor’s Appointments (with Council Approval)

Mayor Persichilli announced the appointment of Mary Wagner to the Shade Tree Commission for an
unexpired term ending December 31, 2018. Council Member Lawver made a motion to approve the
appointment, second by Council Member Marciante with all members present voting in favor.

Committee Reports

Planning & Zoning / Open Space – No report due to Mrs. Gnatt’s absence.

Public Safety / Personnel – Mr. Marciante stated that the Public Safety Committee has met and they are
working on putting together a proposal to present to Council at the meeting later in the month.

Public Works/Shade Tree/ Senior Advisory – Mr. Lawver stated that the Public Works Committee did
meet. Mr. Lawver reported that the road repair schedule is East Curlis and Weidel and Burd Street for
2019. Mr. Lawver stated that also in 2019 Mercer County will be doing Ingleside and we will be asking
them to do Eglantine Avenue. Mr. Lawver stated that 2020 and 2021 road projects have also been mapped
out as well.

Mr. Lawver stated that the Senior Advisory Board did not meet.

Mr. Lawver stated that the Shade Tree Commission added new member Mary Wagner and they have also
asked for an extension for the Community Forestry Grant but even if we do not get the extension they are



Regular Meeting
December 3, 2018

Page 2

2

on track to deliver step one which is the plan for how the grant funds will be used. Mr. Lawver stated that
the plan is due in February 2019.

Library / Parks and Recreation – Mrs. Mills stated that she did not have a report at this time, but Library
Director Kim Ha will be coming to a future meeting to make a presentation.

Finance – Mr. Griffiths stated the Finance Committee did not meet but budget meetings will begin soon.

Historic Preservation / Board of Health / Environmental / Economic Development – Mrs. Chandler
reported that Historic Preservation had a lengthy meeting with the developer of 63 North Main and
residents. Mrs. Chandler stated that the developer made a presentation at the previous meeting which
proposed demolition of the existing house. Mrs. Chandler stated that at this meeting, the developer
proposed a plan to preserve the original front two sections of the house and to develop the back. Mrs.
Chandler stated that there was a very good conversation and overall the plan was very well received. Mrs.
Chandler stated that there are some minor changes and some thoughts that the Board sent back to the
developer and so there will be one meeting to finalize the plan.

Mrs. Chandler stated that Economic Development met and they are moving forward on the Business of the
Year award for January 30, 2019 at the Ocean Bank.

Mrs. Chandler stated that she has nothing to report for Environmental Commission or Board of Health
however, she would again like to thank Rick Smith and Public Works for addressing a Styrofoam issue on
Main Street. Mr. Lawver asked what we do in situations such as this. Mr. Smith stated that he
communicated with the property owner who was also not happy with the situation. Mr. Smith stated that
they picked up and will store the Styrofoam until the next shred event. Mr. Smith stated that the property
owner communicated with the tenant about the situation. Mr. Smith stated that this was an unusual
circumstance but typically if residents follow the sticker program items would be treated like bulk pick up.
Mr. Smith stated that if residents communicate with public works they can make arrangements ahead of
time, but in this instance there was no communication and a large amount of Styrofoam was placed at the
curb prior to a holiday weekend.

Mrs. Chandler stated that usually residents hold onto Styrofoam for the shred/Styrofoam collection event
that is held twice a year. Mrs. Chandler stated that public works does not have the space or ability to store
Styrofoam until the collection dates.

Mr. Lawver stated that occasionally he will see a bulk item out at the curb with no stickers for several days
or more and he would like to know what the protocol is in those situations. Mr. Smith stated that typically
if it sits for several days it has been tagged by public works and the owner has not put stickers on the item.

Council Discussion

Mayor Persichilli asked if there were any items for Council Discussion. There were none.

New Business

BOROUGH OF PENNINGTON
RESOLUTION 2018 – 12.2

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF BILLS

WHEREAS, certain bills are due and payable as per itemized claims listed on the following
schedules, which are made a part of the minutes of this meeting as a supplemental record;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of
Pennington that the bills be paid on audit and approval of the Mayor, the Appropriate Council Member and
the Treasurer in the amount of $ 256,066.07 from the following accounts:

Current $ 179,575.04

W/S Operating $ 27,978.88

General Capital $ 20,471.65

Developers Escrow $ 555.50

Grant Fund $ 27,000.00

Animal Control Fund $ 485.00

TOTAL $ 256,066.07



Regular Meeting
December 3, 2018

Page 3

3

Record of Council Vote on Passage
COUNCILMAN AYE NAY N.V. A.B. COUNCILMAN AYE NAY N.V A.B.

Chandler X Lawver X
Gnatt Absent Marciante S
Griffiths M Mills X

Council Member Griffiths made a motion to approve Resolution 2018-12.2, second by Council Member
Marciante. Mr. Griffiths inquired about an invoice from Ed McManimon for the purchase of the truck. Mrs.
Webb stated that would be for preparation of a resolution that we ended up not doing because Borough
Auditor Mr. Morrison weighed in with an alternative solution. Upon a roll call vote all members present
voted in favor.

BOROUGH OF PENNINGTON
RESOLUTION #2018 – 12.3

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REFUND OF REDEMPTION
MONIES TO OUTSIDE LIENHOLDER AND RESCINDING

RESOLUTION 2018-11.6

WHEREAS, at the Borough Tax Sale held on October 25, 2018, a lien was sold on Block 502, Lot
2, also known as 142 West Delaware Avenue, Pennington, NJ, for 2017 delinquent taxes; and,

WHEREAS, this lien, known as Tax Sale Certificate #17-00001, was sold to CULMAC Investors
Inc., for 0% redemption fee and a $46,000.00 premium: and,

WHEREAS, Santander Bank, N.A., has effected redemption of Certificate #17-00001 in the
amount of $20,403.42;

WHEREAS, by Resolution 2018-11.6 Borough Council mistakenly authorized issuance of a check
for this amount to Santander Bank, N.A., when the check for $20,403.42 should be issued to CULMAC
Investors, Inc.;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Treasurer be authorized to issue a check in
the amount of $20,403.42, payable to CULMAC Investors Inc., Box 521, Monmouth Beach, NJ 07750 for
the redemption of Tax Sale Certificate #17-00001;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Treasurer be authorized to issue a check in the amount of
$46,000.00 (Premium) to the aforementioned lienholder; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the aforesaid Resolution 2018-11.6 is rescinded.

Record of Council Vote on Passage
COUNCILMAN AYE NAY N.V. A.B. COUNCILMAN AYE NAY N.V. A.B.

Chandler M Lawver X
Gnatt absent Marciante X
Griffiths S Mills X

Council Member Chandler made a motion to approve Resolution 2018-12.3, second by Council Member
Griffiths. Mr. Griffiths asked for clarification of this resolution. Mrs. Sterling stated that Council approved a
resolution at the last meeting but the Tax Collector provided the wrong payee for the checks. Mrs. Sterling
stated that no checks were issued to the incorrect payee. Upon a roll call vote all members present voted in
favor.

BOROUGH OF PENNINGTON
RESOLUTION 2018-12.4

RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR EAST CURLIS AVENUE AND WEIDEL DRIVE
RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT

WHEREAS, Borough Council of the Borough of Pennington has authorized advertisement for bids
for the project known as East Curlis Avenue and Weidel Drive Reconstruction Project (NJDOT FY 2016
Municipal Aid, VNHA #43328-500-71);

WHEREAS, a total of seven (7) contractors obtained plans and specifications for the Project and
five (5) contractors submitted bids, which were opened on November 20, 2018;

WHEREAS, on the recommendation of the Borough Attorney, three of the five bids must be
rejected as non-responsive for failure to comply with Project Specifications capping the mobilization
components of the bids;

WHEREAS, the lowest responsive bid was that of Earle Asphalt Company whose base bid price is
$566,563.13 with a Deduct Alternate #1 Price of $7,050.00;



Regular Meeting
December 3, 2018

Page 4

4

WHEREAS, the Deduct Alternate #1 Price relates to the amount the base bid would be reduced if
the Borough chooses to provide the construction layout for the Project;

WHEREAS, Earle Asphalt Company is the lowest responsive bidder with or without deduction of
the Deduct Alternate #1 Price;

WHEREAS, the Borough Engineer has reviewed the bid package submitted by Earle Asphalt
Company and has determined that the bid conforms with the Project Specifications and other bidding
requirements, that Earle Asphalt Company has the ability to perform the work, and that Earle Asphalt
Company should be awarded the contract as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder;

WHEREAS, the Borough Engineer recommends that the contract to Earle Asphalt Company be
awarded for the base bid price of $566,563.13 subject to deduction to a net $559,513.13 if the Borough
hereafter elects to provide the construction layout for the Project under Alternate Deduct #1;

WHEREAS, the award of contract must be made contingent upon receipt of Authorization to
Award by the New Jersey Department of Transportation, Local Aid;

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer of the Borough has certified that partial funding for this
project is available in the amount of $240,000 under the 2016 Municipal Aid Grant funded through the New
Jersey Department of Transportation; and

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer of the Borough has certified that award of this contract
must be contingent on the availability of funding for the difference between the grant award and the contract
amount;

WHEREAS, a summary of the bids is available in the office of the Borough Clerk;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Borough Council of the Borough of
Pennington, as follows:

1. The contract for East Curlis Avenue and Weidel Drive Reconstruction Project is hereby
awarded to the aforesaid Earle Asphalt Company for the total contract price of $566,563.13,
subject to the Borough’s right to reduce the contract under Deduct Alternate #1 to $559,513.13
if the Borough elects to provide the layout for the Project, and further subject to the availability
of full funding;

2. The Mayor, with the attestation of the Borough Clerk, is hereby authorized to execute and enter
into the aforesaid contract on behalf of the Borough upon approval of same as to form by the
Borough Attorney.

Record of Council Vote on Passage
COUNCILMAN AYE NAY N.V. A.B. COUNCILMAN AYE NAY N.V. A.B
Chandler X Lawver M
Gnatt absent Marciante X
Griffiths X Mills S

Council Member Lawver made a motion to approve Resolution 2018-12.4, second by Council Member Mills.
Mr. Griffiths stated that this award is contingent on acquiring funding for the gap between the contract
amount and the grant award. Mr. Lawver stated that we requested funding from the I-Bank but we were
denied. Mrs. Heinzel stated that the I-Bank has a new program in place to fund transportation projects. Mrs.
Heinzel stated that we had a conference call with the I-Bank and the reason that this project was not eligible
for funding was because we had already advertised for the project. Mrs. Heinzel stated that we had to
advertise for the project because we had to award by the DOT deadline of December 6th. Mrs. Heinzel stated
that going forward for future projects we will apply to get on the priority list of projects prior to advertising.
Mr. Griffiths asked if there were any other options for outside funding for the difference. Mrs. Heinzel stated
that Borough Council will have to do a bond ordinance to fund the difference. Mrs. Chandler asked if it is
possible to reduce the scope of the project. Mrs. Heinzel stated that to reduce the scope we would have to
reject the bids and the deadline to award the project is December 6th.

Mr. Marciante asked about the three bids that were rejected. Mr. Bliss stated that the three bids were rejected
because the bid specifications limited the percentage of the bid that the bidder could allocate to mobilization.
Mr. Bliss stated that the engineer does that to avoid what they call front loading the bids which has the bidder
load up the project with all sorts of early expenses so that the end of the project is underfunded but the
contractor has their money. Mr. Bliss stated that we are fine with rejecting the three bids as non-responsive.
Mr. Griffiths stated that we are essentially committing ourselves to $320,000 in capital expense. Mr. Lawver
stated that he does not know the last time that the Borough has bonded to close a gap in funding for a road
project. Mr. Griffiths stated that even if it is a challenge he would like to see if the project could be scaled
back. Mr. Lawver stated that Curlis and Weidel were ripped up to replace the water lines and it would be
pretty hard to scale back the project. Mr. Lawver stated that if we let the grant lapse our next chance to apply
would be the 2020 grant cycle and we would have to explain to the DOT why we let a grant lapse and why
we are applying for the same grant again. Some discussion took place regarding redefining the project to fit



Regular Meeting
December 3, 2018

Page 5

5

within the grant award. Mr. Lawver stated that the award has to take place by December 6th and there is not
enough time to redesign, rebid and award a contract. Mr. Lawver stated that the other challenge with
redefining the scope is that Curlis is essentially a glorified mill and overlay, but Weidel Drive is bigger
project because we are trying to address drainage issues that cause the road to deteriorate. Mrs. Heinzel
stated that the I-Bank is essentially a loan so maybe the consideration should be the difference between
borrowing from the I-Bank and borrowing on our own. Mrs. Webb stated that because the I-Bank is
borrowing large amounts for multiple projects they get a much better interest rate. Mr. Griffiths stated that
interest rate on Bond Anticipation Notes is 1 or 2 percent so if the I-Bank was going to be 2percent there is
really no impact to the Borough. Mr. Griffiths stated that logically there is no fork in the road. Mr. Griffiths
stated that he is inclined to approve the resolution and in the context of reinvesting in our road projects and
he would expect that the Borough will be spending around $300,000 per year in road repairs anyway. Mr.
Lawver stated that this is bad news that can be countered with the good news that we won’t be doing
Lanning, Voorhees, Eglantine and other roads in town that Mercer County has done or will do for us for the
cost of the asphalt only. Upon a roll call vote all members present voted in favor.

BOROUGH OF PENNINGTON
RESOLUTION #2018 – 12.5

RESOLUTION AMENDING POLICY 4.6 OF THE BOROUGH PERSONNEL MANUAL,
CONCERNING PAID SICK LEAVE

WHEREAS, the Borough of Pennington seeks to amend Policy 4.6 of the Borough Personnel
Manual, concerning paid sick leave, to incorporate changes mandated by the Paid Leave Act, P.L. 2018, c.
10, effective October 29, 2018;

WHEREAS, the Borough provides paid sick leave benefits for full-time employees but not for part-
time employees;

WHEREAS, the Paid Leave Act applies only to public employees who do not already have sick
leave benefits;

WHEREAS, the attached amendments to Sick Leave Policy 4.6 are consistent with the Paid Leave
Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Borough Council of the Borough of
Pennington, that the amended Sick Leave Policy 4.6 attached to this Resolution be adopted, incorporated into
the Personnel Manual and made the subject of notice to all affected employees as required by law.

Record of Council Vote on Passage
COUNCILMAN AYE NAY N.V. A.B. COUNCILMAN AYE NAY N.V. A.B.

Chandler M Lawver X
Gnatt absent Marciante X
Griffiths S Mills X

Council Member Chandler made a motion to approve Resolution 2018-12.5, second by Council Member
Griffiths. Mr. Bliss stated that the Legislature adopted the Paid Leave Act effective October 29, 2018 that
essentially requires part time and non-regular employees to receive paid time off. Mr. Bliss stated that no
public employee already receiving sick leave benefits is subject to the act so there is no change for full time
employees. Mr. Bliss stated that what this policy does is adopt the legislations sick leave policy for part time
employees. Mr. Griffiths asked if this is mandatory. Mr. Bliss stated that the statute is self-executing and
preempts any local ordinance; we are simply incorporating it into our personnel manual. Mr. Lawver asked
if the accrual rate is defined. Mr. Bliss stated that the accrual rate is one hour of sick leave for every thirty
hours worked during a calendar year. Mr. Bliss stated that everything in the new policy is either mandated
by the statute or a choice that we were entitled to make under the statute. Mr. Bliss stated that the most
prominent choice that was made is that the statute permits a part-time employee once having earned 40 hours
to carry the forty hours to the next year however it continues to be subject to the forty hour maximum
limitation by year. Mr. Bliss stated that we are permitted to provide that we will not buy out unused sick
leave upon separation so that effectively the earned hours have to be used for sick time as defined in the act.
Mr. Bliss stated that under this policy, if a part-time employee has earned paid sick leave, they can go to an
appointment for an hour and be paid if they have the hours to use. Mr. Lawver asked if there is an option to
disallow carryover. Mr. Bliss stated that the statute provides that carryover is permitted but it is subject to
the maximum of forty hours. Mr. Lawver stated that an employee would accumulate up to forty but they
cannot use more than forty in a given year. Mrs. Heinzel asked if the statute addresses part time employees
who are employed full time elsewhere. Mr. Bliss stated that he did not see a coordination of benefits
provision. Mr. Bliss stated that to the extent that there is employment with the Borough for X number of
hours they can offset the X hour obligation against sick time that they have earned with the Borough. Mr.
Lawver asked if a part time employee such as a crossing guard could accumulate less than 40 per year and
carry them over for a couple years and then use 40 or are they only allowed to use as many as you earn in a
year. Mr. Bliss stated that if an employee does not earn 40 in a year but can nonetheless aggregate 40 hours
over a number of years then they can use 40 hours in one year. Mr. Bliss stated that the one thing that is not
in the policy as drafted is that the statute provides for a broader array of uses for sick time and the statute
provides more detail than what we have in our own policy for full time employees, such as taking care of a



Regular Meeting
December 3, 2018

Page 6

6

family member which now includes a person whose close association with the employee is the equivalent of
a family relationship. Mr. Bliss stated that the Department of Labor has regulations out that help deal with
some of the nuances, but for now we have this policy. Upon a roll call vote all members present voted in
favor.

Professional Reports

Mrs. Heinzel stated that the next Styrofoam/Shredding event will be held February 2nd and the school has
again agreed to host the event.

Mrs. Heinzel stated that the Holiday Walk will be held this Friday evening.

Mrs. Heinzel reminded Council of the December 27th meeting at 3:00 pm.

Mr. Lawver stated that he would like to take a moment to thank Mayor Persichilli for your tremendous years
of service. Mr. Lawver stated that for hundreds if not thousands of people Mayor Persichilli is the face of
Pennington. Mr. Lawver stated that the image of Mayor Persichilli on the corner of Main and Delaware in a
sash and top hat during Busy Town will be with children forever. Mr. Lawver stated that Mayor Persichilli
has represented Pennington incredibly at events both big and small in town and throughout the State. Mr.
Lawver stated that Mayor Persichilli always has a warm smile, a friendly greeting and a good story. Mr.
Lawver stated that Mayor Persichilli has been a tremendous listener, consensus builder and has worked
tirelessly on behalf of Pennington and he would like to thank him for that. Mr. Lawver stated that for those
who may not know, Mayor Persichilli has been remarkably successful with vastly improving relationships
with Mercer County and that is represented by the millions of dollars saved by having our roads paved by
Mercer County. Mr. Lawver stated that the Shade Tree Committee is now working exceptionally well with
Public Works and the support given to the senior community and the Senior Center renovation can all be
directed back to relationships that Mayor Persichilli has built with Mercer County. Mr. Lawver stated that
Mayor Persichilli has improved the position of Pennington in the business community by effectively
countering the narrative that it is hard to do business in Pennington. Mr. Lawver stated that The Shoppes of
Pennington, Heritage of Pennington and incredible interest in the landfill all point back to Mayor Persichilli’s
leadership. Mr. Lawver stated that Mayor Persichilli has built an effective and productive team within the
Borough and our employees have no bigger advocate and he knows that it is appreciated. Mr. Lawver stated
that Mayor Persichilli has treated employees fairly given all of the constraints faced with running a Borough
on behalf of the taxpayers. Mr. Lawver stated that without droning on, he would like to convey how much
Mayor Persichilli will be missed, how much we appreciate everything he has done for the town and how
much we are all richer for having the pleasure of working with and calling Mayor Persichilli our friend.

Mr. Weed Tucker of Woolsey Court stated that on behalf of the “has been club” he would like to state that
Mayor Persichilli has been a great inspiration and a great leader for many years. Mrs. Heinzel stated that
Mayor Persichilli is the longest serving Mayor in the history of Pennington Borough.

There were no other comments from professionals.

Public Comment

Mayor Persichilli asked anyone wishing to speak to come forward and state their name and address for the
record and to limit comments to the Governing Body to a maximum of 3 minutes.

Officer Novin Thomas of the Pennington Police Department came forward. Officer Thomas stated that he
has been here for twenty-one years and he can safely say that under Mayor Persichilli’s leadership things
have changed for the better in both the Police Department and in the town. Officer Thomas stated that on a
personal note he would like to say thank you to Mayor Persichilli. Officer Thomas remembered a day when
he brought his daughter to work one day and Mayor Persichilli brought her into the office and put her to
work stuffing envelopes and gave her $20.00, which was her first $20 for working that she now has in a
frame to this day. Officer Thomas personally thanked Mayor Persichilli for everything that he has done and
it will be a sad day when the Mayor officially steps down.

At 8:19 pm, with no further business to come before the Borough the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Elizabeth Sterling
Borough Clerk


